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Introduction

The Department of Internal Affairs

The Department of Internal Affairs (DIA) – Te Tari Taiwhenua, is New Zealand’s oldest Public Service Department, tracing its origins back to the first Colonial Secretary’s Office established in 1840.  The Department is a large multi-purpose organisation, with both policy and operational functions.

Our Purpose (from DIA Statement of Intent)

The Department of Internal Affairs serves and connects citizens, communities and government to build a strong, safe nation.

DIA Activities

DIA activities include: the issue of passports; administering civil unions; registering births, deaths, marriages and civil unions; administering citizenship applications; regulating gambling; enforcing censorship law; interfacing between local government and central government; contributing to community development by administering Lottery Grants, Community Grants Schemes and Trusts; and providing support services and policy advice for Ministers of the Crown.  The Department also includes the Office of Ethnic Affairs and the Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency Management.

Link to the New Zealand Disability Strategy

The Statement of Intent 2008-11 provides a high level description of the Department’s direction in the medium term.  The Statement of Intent (page 27) advises that DIA will continue to contribute to government strategies, which seek to ensure the needs of diverse groups are recognized, including the New Zealand Disability Strategy.

Flowing out of this is the business planning and reporting framework that includes specific strategies and action plans.  The Disability Strategy, along with our Equal Employment Opportunities strategy forms part of this framework.

Accessible government

All government agencies are asked to prioritise actions to increase their accessibility to disabled people. This is about getting the basics right, so that disabled people can access government on the same basis as other people.

These actions support realisation of the New Zealand Disability Strategy’s objective 6: foster an aware and responsive public service.

Four critical areas where disabled people interact with government agencies are: 

information – such as brochures, letters, publications, websites

buildings – such as service centres, corporate offices

services – such as face to face at a service centre, call centres, information electronically or hard copy

as an employer – such as job application procedures, job descriptions, accommodations in workplaces, intranets. 

	Achievement story

Please tell us about an achievement of your agency in 2007-2008 to improve your accessibility, what this involved, and the effect this has had on disabled people.




Accessible information 
Outcome: Disabled people can access publicly available government information on the same basis as non-disabled people. Disabled people know about, access and use government information and services.

Please describe against the suggested action outputs that your agency planned to do in the year ending June 2008, what your actual achievements were.


1. Online information (internet and intranets)

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Meet Web standards version 1.0
	Ongoing upgrades.
	All websites in development had the requirement for meeting web standards V1.0 in their specification.


	2. Meet Web Guidelines versions 3.0
	Upgrade the Beehive web site to ensure compliance with mandatory requirements of the NZ Government Web Standards and Recommendations v1.0 by January 2008.
	This project was completed.

	3. Tested accessibility for disabled people

	Ongoing
	All websites in development have undergone testing for web standards compliance including accessibility.

	4. Adapted to increase accessibility
	Ongoing upgrades – including the following upgrades to the CommunityNet Aotearoa website:

· improving colour contrast to provide better legibility for low-vision users

· improving consistency in identification of links and hyperlinks.
	Discussions have been held on the requirements of a new website platform and its design to allow access for all users.  The identification of links and hyperlinks has been improved through the significant reduction in the number of webpage templates and images used.  
Link consistency and maintenance work was carried out in early April 2008, with 20,000 links checked and 350 links altered accordingly.

The annual online customer service survey completed in May 2008 including generic disability responsiveness questions.  A review of user demographics was conducted in June 2008 to assist the development of an effective communications plan to all users.



	5. Download files accessed as HTML, and not only PDF
	
	The HTML version of the DIA Statement of Intent 2008-11 was published simultaneously with the PDF version on Budget day 2008 (for the first time).   
Where possible HTML versions of files are published.

	6. Plain English used
	
	Ongoing

	7. New Zealand Sign Language used
	
	


2. Hard copy information

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Plain English used
	N/A

	

	2. Available in alternate formats, on request

	a. New Zealand Sign Language
	
	

	b. Braille
	
	

	c. Audio
	
	


3. Audio/visual resources

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. TV adverts have captions and/or NZSL
	
	

	2. DVD/video products have captions and/or NZSL
	Several audio visual DVD resources made available via website(s) – DIA and Dog safety.
	All audio visual DVDs on the DIA and Dog Safety websites were provided with full written transcripts.



4. Other information

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Multiple contact points are advertised as well as telephone
	
	Yes


	a. Fax
	
	Yes


	b. Email
	
	Yes


	2. Please tell us if there are other things that your agency does/or is planning to make its information accessible
	
	The Department has improved physical access for people using wheelchairs at its main office should people want to pick up information or make enquiries in person.



Accessible buildings 
Outcome: Disabled people can visit, work, and move about independently in all government buildings and carry on ordinary activities there, on the same basis as others.

Please describe against the suggested action outputs that your agency planned to do in the year ending June 2008, what your actual achievements were.

1. Structural elements

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. All buildings and sites meet regulatory access requirements (eg NZS 4121) 
	Bi-annual property inspection sheets to be developed for all sites.


	Inspection sheets were developed as part of the annual property inspection process with all sites visited during the year. No immediate issues were identified. 


	2. Buildings and sites have Building Code compliance 
	Audit of all buildings via the bi-annual property inspection process will determine ongoing statutory compliance.
	All sites were inspected during the year.  No immediate issues were identified and all sites met statutory requirements. 


	3. Buildings and sites are audited for accessibility and passed
(eg Barrier Free Trust, other accredited accessibility advisor)
	A review of all sites to be undertaken to determine compliance.
	All sites were inspected during the year. No immediate issues were identified.


	4. Clear walk paths through floors (for staff and visitors)
	A review of all sites to be undertaken to determine compliance.
	All sites were inspected during the year. No immediate issues were identified.


	5. Assistive listening devices are in meeting rooms, and functioning checked regularly
	To be reviewed as part of bi-annual building inspection.
	No devices in existence at present. This will be looked at on a case by case basis and determined by the level of disability and the requirements.


	6. Elevators announce floors and direction of movement
	To be reviewed as part of bi-annual building inspection.
	

	7. Elevator buttons have Braille labels
	To be reviewed as part of bi-annual building inspection.
	


2. Contact with the public

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Reception areas are accessible
	Reception areas at other sites to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis in conjunction with fit outs and/or building alterations. 
	All the Department’s property sites with reception areas are accessible.  Reception areas at other sites will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis in conjunction with fit outs and/or building alterations.


	2. Counters used by public are lowered (eg for wheelchair users, people who have a problem standing)
	Reception areas at other sites to be reviewed on a case-by-case basis in conjunction with fit outs and/or building alterations. 
	All the Department’s property sites with counters used by the public are accessible.  



	3. Frontline staff are trained in disability responsiveness
	Ongoing.

	Ongoing as part of specific business groups responsibility to train front line staff accordingly.

	4. Staff are familiar with NZ Relay service
	Unknown
	Unknown

	5. Clear and accessible pathways to enter buildings and sites
	A review of all sites to be undertaken to determine ongoing compliance.
	All sites were inspected during the year. This  resulted in no immediate issues around clear and accessible pathways being identified.


	6. Obvious and visible signage to locate entrances and exits
	A review of all sites to be undertaken to determine ongoing compliance.
	All sites were inspected during the year. This resulted in no immediate issues around obvious and visible signage being identified.


	7. Accessible car parking available near entrances
	Site selection criteria for business units and building inspection reports to be developed to ensure accessible car parking criteria is captured. 
	Site selection and annual property inspection sheets were amended to capture accessible parking criteria.


3. Workplace management

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Contracts for IT applications require accessibility (for staff and/or public users) (eg EDRMS)
	To be reviewed.
	Egovt standards include in any new contracts for IT applications.



	2. Fire safety and evacuation procedures specify the needs of disabled people (staff and visitors)
	Ongoing.
	Fire safety and evacuation procedures criteria captures the needs of disabled people (staff and visitors).

	3. Fire alarms have flashing lights to alert hearing impaired/deaf people
	To be reviewed.
	Fire alarms that have flashing lights to alert hearing impaired/deaf people will be looked at on a case by case basis.




Accessible services
Outcome: Disabled people can access government services on the same basis as non-disabled people.

Current DIA services are accessible and able to be used by disabled people.  The needs of disabled people are considered and if appropriate addressed as part of the development, design and implementation of new policies and services.

1. Policy and practice

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Data on service users can be disaggregated by disabled people
	
	Ongoing 
The Department ensured that all sites complied with the Disability Strategy and the needs of disabled people were addressed in any refurbishment/ fit out of offices

Customer service surveys carried out by business groups included appropriate disability responsiveness questions.  
In one recent survey, the Identity Services business group, identified 27 respondents (4%) as having a disability (where disability is defined as a physical or intellectual disability lasting six months or more). Of these respondents, one person advised that the disability affected or impaired their access to services.


	2. Services are responsive to the needs of disabled people 
	A review of all sites to be undertaken to determine compliance.
	

	3. There is a written policy on use and provision of New Zealand Sign Language interpreters for client meetings
	
	

	4. Staff dealing with service users are trained to understand and be responsive to disabled people’s needs
	
	

	5. Staff have knowledge of the NZ Relay service, and how to place and receive calls.
	
	


Being a good employer 
Outcome: Government agencies provide equal opportunities in employment for disabled people to be recruited, retained, and promoted on the same basis as non-disabled people.

Please describe against the suggested action outputs that your agency planned to do in the year ending June 2008, what your actual achievements were.


1. Employment practice

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Human resource EEO policies / procedures specifically recognise disabled people and do not discriminate against them
	On going
	Yes

	2. Recruitment processes are accessible and responsive (eg vacancies advertised with alternative modes of contact, website accessible, supports provided for interviews where necessary)
	On going
	Disabled applicants were able to respond to Department vacancies via the Department’s website, phone and handwritten/typed letter.  The Department welcomes support people for disabled applicants

	3. Human resource staff are familiar with EEO issues for disabled people
	
	

	4. Induction training includes awareness of disabled people, as part of a diverse workforce
	Continues to promote EEO networks 
	The Department promotes EEO networks including Disabled network during Departmental Induction.


	5. Internal agency communications promote the visibility of disabled staff, as part of a diverse workforce
	Will utilise opportunities as they arise to promote visibility of disabled staff.
	

	6. Data: the number of disabled people employed (using SSC EEO definition of disability)
	Continue to collect data and information
	The Department continues to collect data and information

	7. Data: the number of disabled people currently employed under Mainstream programme
	Continue to collect data and information
	The Department continues to collect data and information

	8. Data: the number of staff employed who were previously under the Mainstream programme
	Continue to collect data and information
	The Department continues to collect data and information


2. Supports for disabled staff

	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Assessments of workplace accommodations and/or supports are provided (eg adaptive computer applications, flexible working conditions)
	
	

	2. Accommodations in the workplace are provided, if needed (eg desk changes, NZSL interpreters, adaptive computer software)
	
	

	3. Data: the number and type of accommodations provided to staff
	
	

	4. Network of disabled staff supported, if requested
	Yes
	Yes

	5. Disabled staff provided with opportunities for career advancement
	On going
	Yes

	6. Disabled staff feel included in their workplace and have the same opportunities as non-disabled staff
	
	Staff engagement survey did not elicit any concerns from staff re their being excluded from the workplace and opportunities 

	7. Please describe any other supports available to disabled staff
	
	


Including a disability perspective

Government agencies that have social policy responsibilities should complete this section. A disability perspective should be routinely considered within ordinary policy development work that may directly, or indirectly, impact on disabled people. 

What is a disability perspective?

A disability perspective is a viewpoint that considers the needs and aspirations of disabled people and their families/whānau. When you apply a disability perspective to a policy or service you are developing, you need to analyse the impact it will have on disabled people and their family/whānau.

In the past, government policy and programmes have often failed to consider disability perspectives. This has effectively prevented disabled people accessing opportunities and fully participating in society. Government policy and service development that reflects the realities of disabled people’s lives can enhance their participation and independence. This contributes to a more inclusive society.

Cabinet requires all papers, where appropriate, to include a disability perspective.

When is it appropriate to include a disability perspective?

Any initiative that directly or indirectly affects disabled people, both within and outside government. Disabled people are present in all social environments - the home, work and the community – of all ages, and in all population groups, such as Maori, Pacific peoples. This means all legislation, policies, programmes and services will potentially impact on them.

Consultation with the disability sector should be considered, where appropriate. The Office for Disability Issues should also be involved on the same basis as other government agencies.

How do I learn more about what a disability perspective means?

The Office for Disability Issues has produced an online resource that explains Cabinet requirements to include a disability perspective in policy development. 

This resource can be accessed on the Office website at: 
http://www.odi.govt.nz/disability-perspective/
Achievement story – including a disability perspective in new policy or service development

Please tell us about an achievement of your agency in 2007-2008 to include a disability perspective in new policy or service development, what this involved, any consultation with disability sector organisations, and the effect the policy or service has had/or will have on disabled people.

The Department established the Confidential Listening and Assistance Service during 2007/08.  The Service is based on the Confidential Forum for Former In-Patients of Psychiatric Hospitals, established in 2004 to provide an opportunity for former in-patients to speak about their experiences.  The new service extends the forum to all people who allege abuse or neglect or have concerns about their time in state care in the health, child welfare or residential special education sector prior to 1992.  The Service will be available for individuals who have (or did have) mental illnesses and intellectual disabilities who were in state care during the relevant period of time.  

In early 2008, the Department reported to the Office of Disability Issues on the review of both the compliance of legislation for which it is responsible, and also compliance of internal policies, with the United Nations Convention on Rights of Persons with Disabilities.  Overall, very few inconsistencies were identified.  
There were three legislative amendments included in the Disability (United Nations Convention on the Rights of Persons with Disabilities) Bill as a result of this review.  The power to remove a person from office by reason of being “mentally disordered” under the Mental Health (Compulsory Assessment and Treatment) Act 1992 was removed from both the Local Government Act 2002 and the Community Trusts Act 1999 and a reference to being removed from office by reason of being detained under the Mental Health Act 1969 in the River Boards Act 1908 was also removed.   A similar reference was removed from an internal policy on appointments to committees and boards.  Several other minor policy inconsistencies were notified to the Office of Disability Issues, but not taken further as steps to comply with the Convention were already being taken.  
Policy making and service development 
Outcome: Government agencies’ policy development shows analysis of the impact upon disabled people. Disabled people experience an increase in their well-being and ability to participate in society as the result of government policy.

Please describe against the suggested action outputs that your agency planned to do in the year ending June 2008, what your actual achievements were.


	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. New policy and service development specifies the impact on disabled people
	
	

	2. Quality assurance frameworks include reference to the New Zealand Disability Strategy and the Disability Perspective Toolkit
	
	

	3. Guides and advice on policy development specify consideration about disabled people as part of a diverse New Zealand population
	
	The Department has a clearly defined policy process to guide policy development.  The New Zealand Disability Strategy is one component of the Department’s social justice and community development framework that is one of several frameworks that form part of the policy process.  

	4. Agency Cabinet paper template includes a disability perspective section
	
	The Department’s Cabinet paper template does not include a disability perspective section.
All Cabinet papers submitted to the Cabinet Social Development Committee include a disability perspective section where appropriate.

	5. Research and evaluation projects include data collection on disabled people
	
	

	6. Consultation on policy and service development includes disability sector organisations
	
	During 2007/08 the Department continued to consult with the Office of Disability Issues on any papers that might raise disability issues.  Examples of papers consulted on include: the New Zealand Lotteries Commission Internet Proposal: Stage 1; Release of Research Report on Gaming Machine Profits Survey; and Gambling Act 2003:  Review of Minimum Percentage Return to Authorised Purposes.

	7. Data: the number of disability sector organisations consulted
	
	

	8. Examples of Cabinet papers showing a disability perspective 
	New Zealand Lotteries Commission Internet Proposal EXG (07)55 29 November 2007
Extract from Cabinet paper, Summary, “The Office for Disability Issues has indicated concerns that access to online gaming may increase the number of people who get into financial distress as a result of gambling.  Officials from the Department of Internal Affairs and Ministry of Health consider that there is a low risk of problem gambling due to the stage 1 initiative, because of the nature of the games being offered and the harm prevention measures that would be introduced.”

	9. Examples of other policy documents that show a disability perspective
	

	10. Examples of other strategic organisation documents, such as statement of intent, that show a disability perspective
	The Department’s Statement of Intent 2008-2011 includes a reference to the New Zealand Disability Strategy (page 27).


Implementation beyond your agency 
Outcome: Government agencies promote action to implement the New Zealand Disability Strategy in other agencies within their monitoring and/or reporting responsibility.

Please describe against the suggested action outputs that your agency planned to do in the year ending June 2008, what your actual achievements were.


	Action outputs
	Planned for 2007-2008
	Achieved 2007-2008

	1. Advice provided to other agencies on implementing the New Zealand Disability Strategy (including a disability perspective in development of policy, funding, service provision)

	Draw attention to the wider State Sector obligations, which includes the NZ Disability Strategy, in the Letter of Expectations for each of the Crown entities we monitor.

The Office of the Health and Disability Commissioner, the Office for Disability Issues and the Office of Ethnic Affairs will continue working towards the establishment of a national standard for both interpreters and translators.
	The Department, on behalf of Ministers, monitors the performance of the following Crown entities: Charities Commission; New Zealand Fire Service Commission; and Office of Film and Literature Classification.  
In March, a Letter of Expectation was sent to each Crown entity.  This noted the requirement to consider their wider State Sector obligations, including the New Zealand Disability Strategy, when developing new policy, allocating funding and in their service provision. 



ANNEX A

Contact Information

The Department maintains and administers the following websites:
	
	Website:


	Providing Information on:

	Departmental Websites
	www.dia.govt.nz
	Department of Internal Affairs information and services

	
	This website includes direct URLs  to the following sections:

	
	· www.bdm.govt.nz
	Births, Deaths and Marriages information

	
	· www.censorship.dia.govt.nz
	Censorship information

	
	· www.citizenship.govt.nz
	Citizenship information

	
	· www.community.dia.govt.nz
	Community Development information

	
	· www.dia.govt.nz/apostille
	Apostille Certification information

	
	· www.dia.govt.nz/authentication
	Document Authentication information 

	
	· www.ems.govt.nz 
	Information about the Electronic Monitoring System for gaming machine societies

	
	· www.gambling.govt.nz
	Gambling information

	
	· www.gazette.govt.nz
	New Zealand Gazette information

	
	· www.passports.govt.nz
	Passports information

	
	· www.ratesrebates.govt.nz 
	Information about the Rates Rebate Scheme

	
	· www.translate.govt.nz
	Translation Service information

	
	www.ethnicaffairs.govt.nz
	Office of Ethnic Affairs information and services

	
	This website includes direct URL to the following section:

	
	· www.languageline.govt.nz
	Information about Language Line – an interpreting service

	
	www.beehive.govt.nz
	Official website of the Government of New Zealand

	
	www.cdgo.govt.nz
	Grants Online website – for online Community Organisation Grant scheme and Lottery Grant applications

	
	www.civildefence.govt.nz
	Ministry of Civil Defence and Emergency Management information and services

	
	www.identityservices.govt.nz
	Identity services online transactions (currently death registrations and certificates only)

	
	www.localcouncils.govt.nz
	Information about what councils do, to encourage public participation in local council processes

	
	www.localcentral.govt.nz
	Directory of central government agencies, to help local authorities make contact for community outcomes processes

	Public Information Websites
	www.community.net.nz
	CommunityNet Aotearoa – an internet resource to support communities

	
	www.dogsafety.co.nz
	Public safety information about dogs

	
	www.getthru.govt.nz
	Get Ready Get Thru – Civil Defence public information website

	
	www.stv.govt.nz
	Single transferable voting information website

	
	www.whatstheplanstan.govt.nz
	Civil defence public information for young people

	
	
	

	Independent Agency Websites
	www.cadetreview.govt.nz
	Ministerial Review into Allegations of Abuse at the Regular Force Cadet School

	
	www.cipc.govt.nz
	Commission of Inquiry into Police Conduct

	
	www.confidentialforum.govt.nz
	Confidential Forum for Former In-Patients of Psychiatric Hospitals

	
	www.gamblingcom.govt.nz
	New Zealand Gambling Commission

	
	www.lgc.govt.nz
	Local Government Commission

	
	www.ratesinquiry.govt.nz
	Local Government Rates Inquiry

	
	www.royalcommission.govt.nz
	Royal Commission on Auckland Governance

	
	www.usar.govt.nz
	Urban Search and Rescue information for emergency sector groups

	
	www.vietnamvetswg.govt.nz
	Joint Working Group on Concerns of Viet Nam Veterans
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